
 

 

       

 

       OFFICE OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

    PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION  

  AGENDA 

          SEPTEMBER 28, 2022 

 
 

I. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 

II. Approval of the September 28, 2022 Planning & Zoning Agenda. 

 

III.   Approval of the minutes of the September 6, 2022 Planning & Zoning Meeting. 

 

IV. Public Comment on any item on the agenda: NOTE: There will be a 2-minute limit on    

comments received. 

 

V. Unfinished Business: 

Consider and Vote on Planner Recommendation B: Amendment to Article III, Section 290-11, 

Conditions and Standards for Conditional and Special Exception Uses, adding conditions for uses 

permitted within the Resource Conservation Zone. 

 

Consider and Vote on Planner Recommendation H: Amendment to Article V, Section 290-19N, 

Open Space Requirements, to incorporate a requirement that park amenities tailored to the needs of 

the anticipated residents be provided, within the required open space, by the developer of any 

development over 10 dwelling units. 

 
Consider and Vote on Planner Recommendation I: Amendment to Article III, Section 290-

11, Conditions and Standards for Conditional and Special Exception Uses, adding conditions to the 

use called “Group Home” and a revised definition of group home. 

 
  Proposed comprehensively amended zoning map: 

 

VI. New Business: 
Chair Announcement: Planning Commission to vote on a Resolution to transmit a favorable 

recommendation on the full set of zoning text amendments and new zoning map to the Mayor and 

Town Council at the October 26th meeting. 

 
Chair Announcement: Planning Commission meeting dates to change for November & December 

2022 due to scheduling conflicts with holidays. 

  

VII. Communications and future agenda items: See Attached. 

VIII. Adjournment:          

 

 8200 BAYSIDE ROAD,   P.O. BOX 400, CHESAPEAKE BEACH, MARYLAND 20732 

                                        PH: (410) 257-2230                   FAX: (443) 964-5449 



      

 

    PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 

                                                                              MINUTES OF THE  
                                                 PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

   SEPTEMBER 6, 2022       
                                

I. Commission Chair Cindy Greengold called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. In attendance were 
Kathleen Berault, Laura Blackwelder, Larry Brown, Kelly Hauhn, and Jan Ruttkay, Commission 
Members, Christopher Jakubiak, Planning & Zoning Administrator, and Sharon L. Humm, 
Commission Clerk.  

 
II.    Approval of the September 6, 2022 Planning & Zoning Agenda. Chair Greengold stated she    

would like to move Recommendations “E” & “F” to the end of the agenda and entertained a motion. 
  

MOTION: Commissioner Blackwelder moved to amend the agenda to add Text 
Amendment 11-New Table 1 Permitted Uses by Zoning District to be the last item on the 
agenda. 

  Chair Greengold stated she wanted to keep the Table in the agenda as presented and called  
for a motion on her original motion to move Recommendations “E” & “F” to the end of the 
agenda. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Brown moved to amend the September 6, 2022  
Agenda to move Recommendations “E” & “F” to the end of the agenda.  
Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay, all in favor. 
 
MOTION: Commissioner Blackwelder moved to amend the agenda to add “complete old 
business from the May agenda.”  Died for lack of a second. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Brown moved to approve the agenda as amended. Seconded by 
Commissioner Berault, all in favor. 

     
    III.   Approval of the minutes of the July 27, 2022 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting. 
    

MOTION:  Commissioner Blackwelder moved to amend the minutes of the  
July 27, 2022 Planning & Zoning meeting to include the exchange between Mr. Jakubiak 
and herself relating to the environmentally sensitive areas that are being proposed to rezone 
to RC. The motion died for a lack of a second. 

 
MOTION: Commissioner Brown moved to approve the July 27, 2022 Planning and Zoning 
minutes as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Berault. Ayes, Commissioners Berault, 
Brown, Greengold, Hauhn, and Ruttkay. Opposed, Commissioner Blackwelder. Motion 
Passes. 
 

IV.    Approval of the minutes of the August 4, 2022 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting. 
 

MOTION: Commissioner Blackwelder moved to amend the August 4, 2022 Planning & 
Zoning minutes to add under the topic of “Density” a statement referencing that she had 
presented a number of other adjustments to Section 290-19A, Tables; Requirements;  



 
 
Exceptions, and with consensus of the Commission, that Chair Greengold directed Mr. 
Jakubiak to capture and bring back for consideration at the Commission’s next meeting, 
which she does not see represented in Planner’s Recommendation G.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Ruttkay.  
Chair Greengold recollects the conversation and is requesting Commissioner Blackwelder 
wait and address this as an amendment to Planner Recommendation G later in the agenda.  
 
The Commission voted on Commissioner Blackwelder’s amendment to the August 4, 2022 
Planning & Zoning meeting minutes.  Ayes, Commissioners Blackwelder & Hauhn. 
Opposed, Commissioners Berault, Brown, Greengold and Ruttkay. Motion Fails. 

 
Chair Greengold moved to approve the August 4, 2022 Planning Commission minutes as 
presented. Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. Ayes, Commissioners Berault, Greengold 
and Ruttkay. Opposed, Commissioners Blackwelder and Hauhn.  Recusal, Commissioner 
Brown.  Motion Fails without the required four members voting in the affirmative, and 
the minutes remain unapproved. 

 
V. Public Comment on any item on the agenda: NOTE: There will be a 2-minute limit on      

comments received. 
  
 Public Comment was received by: 
 

1. Wes Donovan 3418 Cox Road, Chesapeake Beach MD expressed his concerns on a number of 
the proposed “Recommendations” on tonight’s agenda. 

2. Joseph Devlin of Council Baradel, Attorneys at Law, Annapolis, MD representing Michael 
Roepcke, Richfield Station.  Mr. Devlin is requesting boundaries be reconsidered and redrawn 
on the proposed zoning map to return the area comprising 13 previously approved, but not final 
platted and recorded residential lots, known as Block Q, from the proposed RC District to the 
RPC District along with an area intended by the developer to be subdivided into large residential 
lots under the terms of Paragraph 1 of the FIDS agreement. 

3. Gloria Larman 2472 Woodland Court, Chesapeake Beach MD spoke in opposition of additional 
development in Richfield Station. 

 
VI. Consider and Vote on Planner Recommendation A: Amendment to Article XI, Section 290-43, 

Terms Defined, changing the definition of the term Building Height as follows: 

BUILDING HEIGHT - The height of any building shall be the vertical distance of the 
highest point of the roof to the average natural grade level prior to construction or any site 
improvements. The highest point also includes any rooftop deck, fence railing, widow’s 
walk or other rooftop addition that is used as an accessory structure. 

MOTION: Commissioner Ruttkay moved to approve Planner Recommendation A.  
Seconded by Chair Greengold. Ayes, Commissioners Berault, Blackwelder, Greengold, 
Hauhn, and Ruttkay. Opposed, Commissioner Brown. Motion Passes. 

 

Consider and Vote on Planner Recommendation B: Amendment to Article III, Section 290-11, 
Conditions and Standards for Conditional and Special Exception Uses, adding conditions for uses 
permitted within the Resource Conservation Zone. 
 



 
 
 
MOTION: Commissioner Berault moved to amend Planner Recommendation B, Section 
290-11, Conditions and Standards for Conditional and Special Exception Uses within the 
Resource Conservation (RC) Items #13, 15, 18, 52 & 58 from the proposed “C” Conditional 
use to “NP” Not Permitted use.  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Blackwelder moved to amend Commissioner Berault’s motion 
to change the use within the RC district on the above-mentioned items to “SC” Special 
Exception with conditions. Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. Ayes, Commissioner 
Blackwelder. Opposed, Commissioners Berault, Brown, Hauhn, Greengold, and Ruttkay. 
Motion Fails. 
 
The Commission voted on Commissioner Berault’s amended motion above to Planner 
Recommendation B, items #13, 15, 18, 52, & 58, in the RC zone, to change to “NP” Not 
Permitted.. Ayes, Commissioners Berault, Hauhn, & Greengold. Opposed, Commissioners 
Brown, Blackwelder, & Ruttkay. Motion Fails. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Brown moved to table Planner Recommendation B to the next 
regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting noting the proposed amendments are new 
and felt they were not published with sufficient time to allow public review.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Ruttkay.  

 
MOTION: Commissioner Blackwelder moved to amend Commissioner Brown’s motion to 
table Planner Recommendation B so that the motion would include tabling approval of Table 
1, Permitted Uses by Zoning Districts. [Secretary’s Note: Planner Recommendation B, the 

subject of Mr. Brown’s motion to table, assigns the use status (e.g. “conditional”) to certain 

uses proposed to be permitted in the RC District and provides recommended conditions that 

would pertain to each. These uses (with their recommended conditional use status) are 

shown on Table 1, along with all the other uses for all the other districts. The amended 

motion reflects the desire of the Commission not to complete deliberations on Table 1 

without having first deliberated on the conditions pertaining to the RC uses addressed in 

Planner Recommendation B.] 
Ayes, Commissioners Brown, Blackwelder, Hauhn, & Ruttkay.  Opposed, Commissioner 
Berault and Chair Greengold.  Motion Passes.  

 
 

 Consider and Vote on Planner Recommendation C: Amendment to Table 1, Permitted Uses by  
Zoning District (Section 290, Attachment 1), changing the permitted use status of certain uses in the 
Resource Conservation District, listing certain uses and “Expressly Prohibited” in all zoning 
districts, and changing the permitted use status of the use called “Group Home” to “Conditional” in 
the residential districts and to “Not Permitted” in all other districts. 

MOTION:  Commissioner Blackwelder moved to designate “Group Homes” as “SC” 
Special exception with conditions.  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. Ayes, 
Commissioner Blackwelder. Opposed, Commissioners Berault, Brown, Greengold, Hauhn, 
and Ruttkay. Motion Fails. 

 
  MOTION:  Chair Greengold moved to approve Planner Recommendation C as written. 
  Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. 
 

 



 
 
 
MOTION: Commissioner Brown moved to amend Planner Recommendation C under 
“Group Homes” to change the Neighborhood Commercial from a “NP” Not Permitted to a 
“C” Conditional Use. Seconded by Commissioner Ruttkay. Ayes, Commissioners Brown, 
Greengold, and Hauhn. Opposed, Commissioners Berault, Blackwelder, and Ruttkay. 
Motion Fails. 

 
MOTION: Commissioner Brown moved to approve Item #20 “Group Homes” as written as 
“C” Conditional use in all the residential zones and the RPC zone and “NP” Not Permitted in 
the commercial zones and RC zone.  Seconded by Chair Greengold. Ayes, Commissioners 
Berault, Brown, Greengold, Hauhn, and Ruttkay. Opposed Commissioner Blackwelder. 
Motion Passes. 

 
MOTION:  Chair Greengold moved to approve Planner Recommendation C changing the 
permitted use status of certain uses in the RC district as indicated in yellow on the presented 
Table of Uses as follows: 
#13-16 - “C” Conditional 
#17  - “NP” Not Permitted 
#18  - “C” Conditional 
#28  - “NP” Not Permitted 
#43  -  “NP” Not Permitted 
#52  -  “C” Conditional 
#58  -  “SC” Special exception with conditions 

 
MOTION: Commissioner Blackwelder moved to amend Chair Greengold’s motion to 
include the following list of “Expressly Prohibited” uses as “NP” Not Permitted in all 
districts: 

  1.    Casino gambling venues and establishments 
2.    Smoke and vape shops 
3.    Tattoo parlors 
4.    Massage Parlors 
5.    Psychic Reading and Fortune Telling venues 
6.    Adult entertainment venues, establishments and adult bookstores 
7.    Sale or distribution of medical and/or recreational marijuana, cannabis, and/or its  

derivates in any forms, either as a principal or an accessory use 
  8.    Industrial Uses 
  9.    Landfills 

10.  Junk and salvage yards 
11.  Drive-in movie theaters  

  Seconded by Chair Greengold, all in favor. 
 

 Consider and Vote on Planner Recommendation D: Amendment to Article III, Section 290-9,   
Purpose and Intent of Districts, to revise the purpose statement pertaining to the Resource 
Conservation District as follows: 

 
RC Resource Conservation District. The Resource Conservation District is a 
non-residential district intended to protect and maintain wetlands, surface  
waters, forests and open space, steep slopes, as well as low lying areas with 
elevated risks of flooding. The RC District is intended to protect and maintain 
land use in critical flood and stormwater management; to provide land for  
community parks and recreational activities, including access to the Bay and its 



































 

Town of Chesapeake Beach Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 
WHEREAS, authorized by the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, the Chesapeake Beach Planning and 
Zoning Commission (the Commission) prepared, and on January 26, 2022 approved, a new comprehensive plan for the 
Town of Chesapeake Beach titled, Comprehensive Plan: 2021 Update, and recommended it to the Town Council of the 
Town of Chesapeake Beach (the Town Council) who then adopted the Comprehensive Plan on April 21, 2022; and  
 
WHEREAS, §290-29B(2) of the Zoning Ordinance for the Town of Chesapeake Beach (the Zoning Ordinance) establishes 
that the Commission may transmit to the Town Council proposals to amend, supplement, change, modify, or repeal the 
Zoning Ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, during its regular meetings in 2021 and 2022, the Commission investigated, considered, and deliberated on 
amendments to the text of the Zoning Ordinance and conducted a comprehensive rezoning of the Town by considering the 
findings, analyses, goals, objectives, and recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan and proposing and deliberating on 
new zoning classifications (districts), changes to the zoning classifications of properties, and modifications to the 
boundaries of zoning districts on the Official Zoning Map, Chesapeake Beach, Maryland (the Zoning Map); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Commission conducted a public hearing on the proposed text amendments and the proposed 
comprehensively amended zoning map on July, 27 2022 and in multiple subsequent meetings and work sessions following 
the public hearing deliberated on the public comments received and considered refinements and supplements to such 
amendments; and  
 
WHEREAS, on October 26, 2022, finding that each text amendment attached to this Resolution to be in the best interests 
of the Town of Chesapeake Beach, the Commission voted in the affirmative to recommend that the Town Council adopt 
each; and 
 
WHEREAS, on October 26, 2022, finding the proposed comprehensively amended zoning map to be in the best interests 
of the Town of Chesapeake Beach and to be in accord with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 2021 Update, the 
Commission voted in the affirmative to transmit a favorable recommendation to the Town Council to repeal and replace the 
Zoning Map, with a proposed new zoning map, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution. 
 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED that the Commission hereby transmits the attached zoning text 
amendments to the Town Council with a favorable recommendation and advises their adoption; and 
 
AND FURTHER, LET IT BE RESOLVED that the Commission hereby transmits the attached recommended zoning 
map to the Mayor and Town Council with a favorable recommendation that it be adopted to replace the Zoning Map; and 
 
AND FURTHER, LET IT BE RESOLVED that the Commission, having prepared and approved a new Comprehensive 
Plan and having hereby recommended implementing ordinances and a new comprehensively amended zoning map to the 
Town Council, has completed the work, which was contemplated for it, within Town Council Resolutions R-21-3 and R-
21-8, as pre-conditions for rescinding a temporary moratorium on development applications. 

 
 
 
 

____________________________________________  _______________________ 
Cynthia Greengold,      Date 
Chairwoman, Planning and Zoning Commission 



 

Communications and 

future agenda items: 

 

































Motion:  Add as a Condition for Dwelling Unit in Combination with Commercial Use in section 290-11B, a requirement that the Planning Commission finds that the 
development promotes active and vibrant commercial activities at street (grade) level where walking is safe and enjoyable in all commercial zones.

Motion:  Add as a Condition for Dwelling Unit in Combination with Commercial Use in section 290-11B a requirement that the Planning Commission finds that pedestrian 
facilities and connections adhere to design standards outlined in Connecting Chesapeake Beach Connectivity Study, Chapter 3 recommendations, Design Guidelines.

Motion:  Add as a Condition for Dwelling Unit in Combination with Commercial Use that redevelopment which includes multi-unit housing above commercial property shall 
require a minimum lot size of 20,000 sqare feet.

Conditions and Walkability Standards Dwelling Unit in Combination with Commercial Use 





Group Homes 

 

Motion:  (To Expand on Planner Recommendation C) To retain the designation Special Exception 
with Conditions (SC) as a listed option for use in 290 Attachment 1, Table 1 Land Use 
Classifications, and to retain all related reference except where replaced with another 
designation by motion referencing a specific Land Use. 

 

 

Motion:   To make Group Homes a Special Exception with conditions and to make the 
conditions for group homes as follows:  

 

Conditions for Group Homes 

A.  The State of Maryland licenses the facility 
B. No more than five residents, excluding resident staff shall be permitted 
C. Staff services are limited to supervision and assistance and do not involve intensive 

rehabilitation and/or drug therapy services. 
D. The facility provides a minimum of one toilet and one bathtub or shower for every four 

residents. 

 

Motion:  (to expand on Planner recommendation A) To include a definition for group living in 
section 290-43 Terms Defined 

 

Group living. Residential occupancy of a building or any portion of a building by a group other 
than a household. Group living uses typically provide communal kitchen/dining facilities. 
Examples of group living uses include group homes, convents, monasteries, nursing homes, 
assisted living facilities, sheltered care facilities, retirement centers, homeless centers, shelters, 
and halfway houses. The group living subcategories are as follows: 
(1)  
Group home. a facility that is licensed by the Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene 
shared by persons who are unable to live alone because of age-related impairments or physical, 
mental or visual disabilities and who live together as a single housekeeping unit in a long-term, 
household-like environment in which staff persons provide care, education, and participation in 
community activities for the residents with a primary goal of enabling the resident to live as 
independently as possible. Group homes do not include pre-release, work-release, probationary, 
or other programs that serve as an alternative to incarceration. 



(2)  
Sheltered care. An activity accessory to and affiliated with a religious facility providing 
maintenance and personal care for those in need. 

(3)  
Continuing care retirement communities. Establishments primarily engaged in providing a range 
of residential and personal care services with on-site nursing care facilities for 1) the elderly and 
other persons who are unable to care for themselves adequately and/or 2) the elderly and other 
persons who do not desire to live independently. Individuals live in a variety of residential settings 
with meals, housekeeping, social, leisure, and other services available to assist residents in daily 
living. Assisted living facilities with on-site nursing care facilities are included in this subcategory. 

(4)  
Assisted living. Establishments providing housing and supportive services, supervision, personal 
care services, health-related services, or a combination of these to meet the needs of residents 
who are unable to perform or who need assistance with, activities of daily living and/or 
instrumental activities of daily living. The activities of daily living include bathing, dressing, eating, 
and toileting. This subcategory includes nursing homes. 

(5)  
Employee sponsored housing. Housing provided by or subsidized by an employer for 
employees. 



Motion:   To leave the RPC Boundaries and Zone in place as drawn on the current Official Zoning Map 
and to Change the District to RPC (Fully Platted): 

Motion:   To add a new district, RPC (Fully Platted), and to define the district as follows:  The intent of 
the RPC (Fully Platted) district is to recognize fully platted residential planned communities as being 
complete neighborhoods designated to retain all rights that were associated with the original covenants 
of the community and to remain intact as planned, inclusive of all open spaces, stormwater 
management parcels, forest conservation easements, and wildlife habitats.  

 

 





Chesapeake 
Village was an 
RPC

Bayview Hills 
was an RPC

Motion:  Reflect Chesapeake Village, including all associated parcels, as being within the new district, RPC (Fully Platted).

Motion:  Reflect Bayview Hills, including all associated parcels, as being within the new district, RPC (Fully Platted).



Motion:  To make multi-unit housing a conditional (C) rather than a permitted (P) in the RV-2 district and 
to make one of the conditions be that the development adhere to the parameters and processes 
outlined in the PR Planned Redevelopment Floating Zone District. 

 

Motion:  To make a condition for mixed-use re-development be that the development adheres to the 
parameters and processes outlined in the Floating Redevelopment District  

 

Motion:  Replace 290-20 Bonus Density Overlay with a Floating Planned Redevelopment Zone and to 
make adherence to the floating zone procedures and requirements a condition for the development of 
mixed-use, multi-unit, and attached housing on previously developed or consolidated lots. 

 

PR Planned Redevelopment Floating Zone District. 
 

District Description:   The PR Planned Redevelopment Floating Zone District is intended to provide for 
redevelopment opportunities that meet the residential or commercial needs of the Town of Chesapeake 
Beach as determined by the Town Council at the time of proposal, and to promote a high quality of 
design that conforms to existing neighborhood character with common exterior architectural 
details and ornamentation, similar construction materials, and generally conforms in appearance 
and building mass with existing development in the underlying district where located.  
Redevelopment within the PR Floating Zone District shall assure effective control over the 
location, type, and arrangement of higher-density housing and associated open space, cultivate 
a clear and consistent image for new higher-density residential development within the district, 
promote the public welfare, and otherwise achieve the intent of this chapter. 

 

PR Planned Redevelopment Floating Zone District. 
A.  
General. 
(1)  
While provisions and regulations are made to govern any development within the PR Floating 
Zone District no such district will be pre-mapped on the Official Zoning Map. 

(2)  
The PR Floating Zone District amendment process permits specific and detailed mapping of areas 
for the permitted infill and redevelopment projects deemed consistent with the intent of the 
Town of Chesapeake Beach and PR Floating Zone District. 

B.  



Development standards. Development within the PR Floating Zone District shall meet the 
following requirements: 
(1)  
The area proposed for PR Floating Zone District shall be contiguous and at least 20,000 square 
feet in size unless the proposed PR Floating Zone District is an extension of an existing PR Floating 
Zone District. 

(2)  
The area proposed for a planned redevelopment shall be in one ownership, or if in several 
ownerships, the proposal shall be filed jointly by all the owners of the property included in the 
development plan. 

(3)  
The site shall be of a configuration suitable for the development proposed. 

(4)  
Public water and sewerage shall be available. 

(5)  
The site shall be located adjacent to adequate transportation facilities capable of serving existing 
traffic and that expected to be generated by the proposed development. 

(6)  
The owners or developers must indicate that they plan to begin construction of the development 
within one year after final site plan or subdivision approval. If there is no substantial action on 
the part of the applicant at any point in the process for one year, the planned redevelopment 
application shall be null and void. In that event, it will be necessary to begin the PR Floating Zone 
District review process over from the beginning to develop in accordance with such provisions 
unless a time an extension is granted by the Planning Commission. 

(7)  
Density. The maximum allowable density in a planned redevelopment project shall be no more 
than 6 dwelling units per acre. 

(8)  
Permitted uses. In a planned redevelopment, single-family detached, duplex, townhouse, and 
multifamily dwelling units are permitted, along with whatever uses are permitted in the 
underlying zoning district. 

(9)  
Adequate common open space shall be provided for new infill development projects. Such space 
shall include a land developed as recreational areas or designated for the common use of all 



occupants of the planned redevelopment. Common open space shall not include streets, off-
street parking areas, or incidental landscaping within off-street parking areas. 

(10)  
Setback, lot size, maximum lot coverage (structures and impervious), height, yard, and open 
space requirements shall be those applicable to the original zoning district classification(s). The 
Planning Commission may recommend, and the Town Commissioners may modify these 
requirements upon a finding that: 
(a)  
The proposed development design meets the compatibility standards outlined in (____); or 

(b)  
Otherwise clearly exhibits elements that will advance specific goals and objectives of the Town 
of Chesapeake Beach Comprehensive Plan. 

C.  
Procedure PR Floating Zone District approval. 
(1)  
Application. Application for a PR Floating Zone District amendment shall be made to the Town 
Council. Applications shall include: 
(a)  
A written petition for the location of a PR Floating Zone District and a concept master plan, signed 
by the owners, and contract purchasers, if any, of the property that is the subject of the petition. 

(b)  
A narrative describing the following: 
[1]  
Statement of present and proposed ownership of all land within the district; 

[2]  
A statement of how the proposed redevelopment concept corresponds to and complies with the 
goals and objectives of this chapter and the Town of Chesapeake Beach Comprehensive Plan; 

[3]  
Method of providing sewer and water service and other utilities, such as, but not limited to, 
telephone, gas, and electric services; 

[4]  
Description of stormwater management concepts to be applied; 

[5]  
Method of and responsibility for maintenance of applicable open areas, private streets, 
recreational amenities, and parking areas; and 



[6]  
General description of architectural and landscape elements, including graphic representations, 
A statement of how the proposed design meets or exceeds the compatibility standards outlined 
in (____) 

(c)  
A concept master plan including graphic and tabular summaries that depict the following, as 
applicable: 
[1]  
Boundary survey of the area subject to the application; 

[2]  
The total acreage of subject property and identification of all adjoining landowners; 

[3]  
Description of proposed land uses; 

[4]  
Maximum number of dwelling units, approximate densities of residential areas and anticipated 
population; 

[5]  
Land area and locations generally allocated to each proposed use; 

[6]  
Location of proposed roads, public open space, any sensitive resource areas (environmental or 
cultural), and public facilities; and 

[7]  
Maximum nonresidential floor area proposed. 

(d)  
Detailed plans showing: 
[1]  
Perspective streetscape (typical for represented phase); 

[2]  
Proposed building architecture; and 

[3]  
Plan view, perspective, and elevations of private and/or public community facilities if applicable. 

[4]  



Site design standards, including permitted uses, building types, frontage, setbacks, and lot sizes, 
building heights, parking, street widths and cross-sections, sidewalks, lighting, and road 
geometry. 

[5]  
Building standards including size and orientation, building façades, regulated architectural 
elements (windows, trim, etc.), rooflines, architectural styles, fencing, parking, and signage. 

[6]  
Landscape, buffer, and environmental standards, including location, scope, and materials. 

(e)  
If applicable a management statement regarding the anticipated ownership, construction, 
operation, and maintenance of: 
[1]  
Sanitary and storm sewers, water mains, culverts, and other underground structures; 

[2]  
Streets, road, alleys, driveways, curb cuts, entrances, and exits, parking and loading areas, and 
outdoor lighting systems; and 

[3]  
Parks, walking paths, cycleways, playgrounds, and common open spaces. 

(2)  
The Town Commissioners or Planning Commission may require whatever additional information, 
studies, or reports it deems necessary to analyze the application. 

D.  
Referral of Application to Planning Commission. Upon submission to the Town Council of a 
completed application for a PR Floating Zone District amendment and a concept master plan, the 
Town Council shall refer said application and concept master plan to the Planning Commission 
for its review and recommendations. The referral shall authorize the Planning Commission, the 
Town staff, and any consultants or professionals on behalf of the Planning Commission or the 
Town to analyze said application and concept master plan, per all applicable review processes 
and procedures. The Planning Commission or the Town Council may require the cost of any 
analysis or consultant or professional be paid for by the applicant. 

E.  
Planning Commission review and recommendation - PR Floating Zone District amendment and 
concept master plan. 
(1)  



The Planning Commission shall review the PR Floating Zone District amendment request and 
concept master plan for compliance with the requirements of this chapter and consistency with 
the Town of Chesapeake Beach Comprehensive Plan. 

(2)  
The Planning Commission shall evaluate the degree to which the proposed PR Floating Zone 
District request and concept master plan incorporate and/or address the compatibility standards 
outlined in (__) and further the goals and objectives of the Town of Chesapeake Beach 
Comprehensive Plan. 

(3)  
The Planning Commission may make reasonable recommendations to the applicant regarding 
changes to the concept master plan proposal, which, in the judgment of the Planning 
Commission, would cause the project to better conform to the requirements of the Town of 
Chesapeake Beach Comprehensive Plan, the compatibility standards outlined in (__), and the 
goals and objectives of this chapter. The applicant may resubmit the concept master plan to the 
Planning Commission considering the Planning Commission's comments. 

(4)  
After a public hearing, the Planning Commission shall consider and comment on the findings 
required of the Town Council, as outlined in Subsection F(2), herein, and shall make a favorable 
or unfavorable recommendation to the Town Council. 

(5)  
The Planning Commission shall forward the concept master plan, with any revisions, together 
with written comments and recommendations, and its floating zone district comments, to the 
Town Council for action according to the floating zone district and the approval process for a 
concept master plan. 

F.  
Town Council Approval of PR Floating Zone District and concept master plan. 
(1)  
The Town Council shall review the concept master plan and other documents, together with such 
comments and recommendations as may have been offered by the Planning Commission. 

(2)  
After a public hearing, the Town Council may approve or disapprove the proposed floating zone 
district map amendment and associated concept master plan. They shall follow the procedures 
set forth in Article (__) of this chapter. In approving PR Floating Zone District map amendment, 
the Town Commissioners shall make findings of fact, including, but not limited to the following 
matters: population change, availability of public facilities, present and future transportation 
patterns, compatibility with existing and proposed development for the areas, and the 



relationship of the proposed amendment to the Town of Chesapeake Beachg Comprehensive 
Plan. The Town Council may approve the PR Planned Redevelopment Floating Zone District map 
amendment if it finds that the proposed floating zone district amendment is: 
(a)  
Consistent with the Town of Chesapeake Beach Comprehensive Plan; 

(b)  
Consistent with the stated purposes and intent of the PR Floating Zone District; 

(c)  
Complies with the requirements of this chapter; and 

(d)  
Is compatible with adjoining land uses. 

(3)  
As part of the final concept master plan approval, the Town Council shall approve a date for the 
initiation of the proposed development. 

G.  
Additional required procedures. 
(1)  
The administrative procedures for approval of a site plan for property located within the PR 
Floating Zone District are outlined in Chapter (__), Site Plan Review, of the Town Code. Site plans 
shall conform to the approved concept master plan, including the design standards. 

(2)  
The administrative procedures for approval of a subdivision located within the PR Floating Zone 
District are outlined in Chapter 290, Subdivision of Land, of the Town Code. Final subdivision plats 
shall conform to the approved concept master plan. 

(3)  
Any development, site plan or subdivision approval for land in a PR Floating Zone District shall 
be consistent with the specific concept master plan applicable to the property, as approved or 

amended by the Town Commissioners. 

H.  
Amendment of concept master plan. The procedure for the amendment of an approved concept 
master plan shall be the same as for a new application. The Planning Commission may approve 
minor modifications to a concept master plan at a regular meeting using the guidelines set forth 
below to determine whether the proposed amendment is a "minor amendment." 
(1)  
Does not conflict with the applicable purposes and land use standards of this chapter; 



(2)  
Does not prevent reasonable access for emergency vehicle access or deprive adjacent properties 
of adequate light and airflow; 

(3)  
Does not significantly change the general character of the land uses of the approved concept 
master plan; 

(4)  
Does not result in any substantial change of major external access points; 

(5)  
Does not increase the total number of dwelling units or height of buildings; and 

(6)  
Does not decrease the minimum specified setbacks, open space area, or minimum or maximum 
specified parking and loading spaces. 

I.  
Conflict with other articles. Provisions of the PR Floating Zone District, when found to conflict 
with other provisions of this chapter, shall supersede those other provisions with which they 
conflict. Provisions of the PR Floating Zone District, when found to conflict with requirements of 
Chapter 290, Subdivision of Land, of the Town Code, shall supersede those provisions with which 
they conflict. 

J.   
The change/mistake rule. 

(1)  
In considering a PR Floating Zone District Map amendment, the Town Commissioners shall not 
be required to find that there was a substantial change in the character of the neighborhood 
where the property is located or a mistake in the existing zoning classification. 

(2)  
The Town Council shall have the authority to impose conditions upon the grant of the In 
considering a PR Floating Zone District Map amendment, the Town Council shall not be required 
to find that there was a substantial change in the character of the neighborhood where the 
property is located or a mistake in the existing zoning classification. Map amendment application. 
They may require the recordation of covenants and restrictions, in a form approved by the Town 
Attorney, to ensure compliance with said conditions or with any of the provisions of the Code. 

(3)  
If the Town Council fails to enact an ordinance granting the PR Floating Zone District application, 
no application for a PR Floating Zone District Map amendment will be accepted for filing by the 



Town for one year after the date of the Town Council’s decision or the date of finality of any 
judicial review of the Town Council’s decision, whichever is later. 
 
 

 

 


	September 28  2022 Planning  Zoning Agenda-REV_
	September 6, 2022 Planning  Zoning Meeting minutesFF
	Recommendations B,H,I
	Devlin letter and map
	letter to commission
	Recommendation E F
	Commissioners Comments(Lori's motions).pdf
	September 6  Session NC, TC
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2

	Sept 6 Work Session Group Homes (revised)
	Sept 6 Work Session Motion RPC Fully Platted Zone
	Sept 6 Session_Chesapeake Village was an RPC Zoning Maps 2000 and 2010
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 1

	Motions for September 6, 2022 Planning and Zoning Meeting Work (PR) Floating Redevelopment Zone




